
United Nations.-

ECONOMIC'
, AND

SOCIAL COUNCIL

Nations Unies

CONSEIL
ECONOMIQUE
ET SOCIAL

- \

UNRESTRICTED

E/CIL4/SR 97 ~~
3 June 1949

ENGLISH,
ORIGINAL: FRENCH

COMMISSION ON llUMP.N RIGETS

Fifth Sessi('n

SUMMJŒY RECORD OF TEE NINETY-SEVENTH MEETING

Held at Lake Succe13s, New Ycrk
on Tuesday, 24 May 1949 at Il.45 a.m.

CONTENTS: Draft International Covenant on Human Rights

(E/8oo, E/eN .4/188, E/eN .4/239, E/eN .4ftl. ,21,

E/CN.4/H.22, E/CN.4/Vl. 23, E/CN)~/170/Add.5,

E/CN.4/24i) (discussion éontinued):
,

Article 5 (discussion continued)

Chairman: I>1rs. ROCSEVELT United States of America

Members: Mr. HOOD ' Australia

Mr. IEBEAU Belgium

Mr. SAGUES Chile

Mr. CHANG China

Mr. SOERENSEN Denmark

Mr. LOljTFI EgYIJt

Mr. CASSIN France

Mr. GARCIA BAUER --Guatemala

Mrs. MERTA India

Mr. ENTEZAM Iran

Mr. AZKOUL ~banon

!'Ir. mGIES Philippines •

Any corrections .f this record should be submitted in writing, in

either ,of the lvorlèing languages (English or French), and l'lithin ·tvo
, ,

workinG days, ta Mr. E. Delavenay, Director, Official Records Division,

Room F-852, Lake Success. Corrections should be accompanied by or

incorporated in a letter, on headednotepaper, bearing the appropriate

symbol number and enclosed in an f:nvelope marked "Urgent". Corrections

can be dealt with more speedily by the services concerned if delegations'

will be Good' enough also to incorporate them in a mimeographed copy of

the record.



E/CN J./SR 97 .
PaGe 2 '

Memoers: (continued)

Mr. KOVAIENKO

Ml'. PAVLOV

Miss BOHIE

Ml'. VIIFAN

Ulcrainian Soviet Soeialist Repuolic

Union of Soviet Socialist Repuolics

United Kingdom

YUGoslavia

Ccnsultants from non-[;overnmental organizations:

:Uss SEIJIER

Hl'. FISHER

Hl'. FRIEDMAN

Hl'. MCSKOHITZ

l·u's. VERGfŒAj
l:irs. P-RETA

: 'i80 SCRô.EFER

nI' . STEHŒR

Ml'. CRUICYSIDl!I(

Secretariat:

1,1r. IIl:ljJ'IIPEY

Hl' • LJ\J!f. OH

Category A

nrrerican Federation of Laoor (fœ of L)

YTorld Federation of Tre.cle Un.i.dlO (1,lF'ru)

Category B

CO-0rdinatinc Board of JE·~-T~sh Or8anizations

Consultative Couneil of Jeuish Organizaticns

Catholic Int(~rn':~tLCllcÜ UnLm for Social Services

Intermtiono.l Unie 'E (;.L C~tllOlic Hamon 1 s Lea-C5ucf

COlmnîsni.on of thu (;hul'i;ho8 on Inte:cna,Lionul
AffairG

Intcr-.'Jrl0rican Council of Commerce and
Froc1uctioIl

Repreocntatlv0 of' t>:, S<:'cretary-General

Secretary of, the C012lniss:i.lJn

:.:':::": l'T IljTEm1ATIOl'J..~L CCiVE1·!pHT OTT IItlNdJ RIGIiTS (E/GOO ~ :;';;/~;l'i .1}/188,

'::;/Cj~ .~~/239, E/Cn .4/\1. 21, E/Cn .I~/U. 22, E/CN .ll/'.!. 23, E/en )J./170/l.dd.5:
.-=/CH .4/2!fl) (discussion contînued)

fxticle 5 (discusnion continuecl)

The C1fAIRl'WJ stated that the Draftinc Sub-ColUnittec on m'ticle 5

had 08en unaole to submit a sinGle text; the Commission \"'0.8 t11e1'8for0

faced Hith a certain number of different rro}'osnlB Gubrnitted r eSl)ectiyo1y

by the delegations of the United L1DGdom (E/CI·~.I1 /F. 21). Chilf-' (ll:/C'JJ )~/\!. ;',t,l) ,

the United States of hme1'ica (E/CF .)~/170/l.dd..r;), li'l'o.ncl~ (U;/CN)' /1·1. 23)

and the Union of Soviet Soeialist RellUblic.:J (J~/cn .lf/?)Il) •

/The ne\-!' draft



E/CN .4/SR 97
Page 3

The new draft ~ro~osedby the United Kingdom was almost identical

to the original pro~osal 8~bmitted by that delegation (E/CN .4/i88).

The Chilean amendment re~roduCèd the substance of the United K:1ngdom

proposaI in a slightly different fO}:"ID.; the last ~aragra~h, however,

introduced an entirely new conce~t': namely that of amne,sty and the

commutation o~ the death sentence. A se~arate vote would therefore

have to be taken to ascertain whether that paragra~h was admissible'
" .

and could be included in the rest of the amendment.

The United States ~ro~osal was that the whole of article 5 ahould

be reîJlaced by the first paragraph of the Chilean amendment: "No, one

may a.e~rive another ~erson of his life arbitrarily".

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) stated that

his delegation ~Tas not submitting' its amendment formally and would not

ask for a vote on i t. He ~ointed out that the ainendment re~eated

the formula alr'eady used in nrticle 9, sub-paragraph 2 which had been
,

adopted 'by the Commission on the previous day: '''No one shall be deprived

of his liberty exce~t on such grounds and in accordance with such

procedure as established by law (E/CN .4/239) ." '. ,

He agreed that the last ~aragraph of the Chilean amendment

introduced a completely new sUbstantive question. Nevertheless,
, . '

although the time limit laid down for' the ~resentati6n of substantive

amendments had expired, it was difficult'for the Commission to reject

for purely formaI reasons a proposaI the effect'of which would be to

protect the individual's existence ,and which was therefore of undoubted

humanitarian value.

, .
Mr. CASSlN (France) remarked that the French delegationhad

tween the text of the United Kingdom pro~osal as the basis fer its

/amendment and



E/CN .4/sR 97
Page 4 .

amendment and had incorporated certain .of the arguments put

forward by the Chilean delegation during the debates in the

Drafting Sub-Cemmittee. It had not retained sub-paragraph (c)

of the proposaI, however, since it thought that the acts of

war referred to in that sub-paragraph did not come within

the framework of article 5. Apart from that the French

amendment was in complete conformity, as far as substance

was concerned, with the United Kingdom proposaI.

Mrs. MEBTA (India) thought that the question of

amnesty was out of place in article 5, since the purpose of

that article was to define thevarious cases in which an

individual could be deprived of his life.

Mr. PZKOUL (Lebanon) drew attention to the fact that

the second parasraph of the Chilean amendment also introduced

a conception which hud not hitherto appeared in the various

proposalo; according to that parugraph, sentence of death

could be imposed only as a penalty for the most serious

crimes under ordinary law and never for political offences.

The concept of the political crime was therefore eliminated.

He sug3ested that a separate vote should be taken on the

admissibility of that paragraphe

Mr. SAGUES (ChUe) withdre"T the last phrase of

the paragraph in question stating that sentence of death

could not be imposed for political offences; he pointed

out, however, that that idea was already implied in the

first part of the sarne paragraph which stated that sentence

of death could be imposod only for crimes under ordinary
law.

The CHl,IRMP~ stated that the Commission would vote

first on the admissibility of the last parucruph of the

Chilean arnendment (E/cN .lJ./'vl. 22).

IMr. GARCIA BAtlER



Mr. GARCIA BAUER (Guatemala) requested

ElcN .4/sR 97 .
Page 5 . .
. , 1) a .

. of.... t

a vote by roll-caIL

A vote was takèn by roll-calI.

Australia voted first.

In favour: Belgium, Ch1le, China, Denrnark, Fgypt,

France, Guatemala, India, Iran, Philippines,

Ukrainien Soviet Socialist Republic,

Union of So:iet Socialist Republics,

United States of America, Yugoslavia.

Abstalninp;: United K1ngdolD.

The last paragraph of the Ch1lean amendment (ELON .4/1 22) was

declered admissible by 14 votes to none, with l abstention.

. ....

Miss BOWIE (United Kingdorn), on behalf of her delegation,

accepted the arnendment submitted by the French delegation (E/CN.41W 23)
~ubject to two reservations: she would prefer to retain the expression

"na tional securi ty" and she was opposed to the deletion of sub-paragraph Cc)
/

of the United Kingdorn text.

r1r. FNTEZAM (Iran) proposed that, in the circumstances, the

French amendment ahould be taken a8 the basis for discussion .. The two

points on which the United KingdolD delegation had made reservations

could be voted on separately.

r~s. r~HTA (India) stated that generally speaking her.delegation

shared the viewpoint of the United Kingdom delegation except with regard

to sub-paragraph (c), which 1t would prefer ta delete.

With regard to the USSR representative's suggestion, she recalled

that her delegation had voted against the inclusion of.a list of

exceptions in article 9 becaU8e it had realized that it was impossible to

draw up a completely satisfactory list; that vas not so in the present case

where the list proposed by the United Kingdom and French delegations was

both accurate and complete.

Mr CASSIN (France) expleined the reasons for which his

delegation could not agree ta the word "arbitrarily" and proposed that

the word "intentionDlly" should be 8ubstituted.

/ The principle



E/CN .4/SR 97
Page 6

The principle which ft waB important ta proclaim in article 5 weB

that no one could be deprived of his life, except for extremely

serious offences. That principle should be expressed in simple

terms because, as soon as that rule was deviated from, there vffiS

the risk of creating a doubt in people's minds and uncertainty in

the interpretation of the ,law. The protection of human life

could not be left to the law. On the contrary, the task of the

Commission was to promote the progress of mankind and to assist

governments ta control the forces which might induce them to abuse

their power: the Declaration was the first step towards that

objectivej' the Covenant should be the second.

The CHAIRlfl.AN, speaking as the representative of the United

States, said her dele8ation preferred the ward Ifarbitrarily" which

had in it the idea of intention and obviated the need for a list of

exceptions which might always give rise to discussion or prove

incomplete.

Miss BOPIE (United Kingdom) on the contrary thought like

Mr. Cassin that the word "intentionally" should be retained as it

was of the utmost importance that the principle proclairned should

he based on hurnanitarian considerations. Thus, the first paragraph

of article 5 should be drafted in such a way that no State would be

able to invoke laws it had decreed in order to justify the sentencing

of political adversaries to death.

MIss Bowie explained that her delegation's preference for the

expression "natienal security" stemmed from the same concern: the

Uni ted Kingdem delegation thought that tee use of force re,sulting

in loss of life could be permitted only when the security of the State

was at stake.

Miss Bowie recognized, however, that the reference ta lawful

acts of war ruight seem out of place in article 5. Consequently,

the United Kingdom delegation was prepared ~o suppress sub-paragraph (c)

if it was assured that in another article of_a more general nature,

/ article 4



ElcN .4/SR 97
Page 7

article 4, for example, the Commission would insert a provision

stating that in the event of war, nonè of the articles of the

Covenant could be interpreted asauthorizing the disregard of

international conventions on war. Mies Bowie stressed the
necessity of being realistic, in view of the present world

situation: the draft Covenantunder consideration would be

incorn~lete if it did not contain a reference to The HagUe

international conventions on the laws and customs of war.

Mr. LEBEAU (Belgium) shared the views of the representatives
of France and. the United Kingdom on the word Il intentionally" •

He preferred the French 'version of sub -paragraph (b) (iii)

because, in the United Kingdom text, killing wouldbe lawful only

if the State itself were endangered, whereas there were numerous

instances where the defence of the commonweal could justifya resort

to force, for example in the case of thèprotection of a dam or·

arsenal.

Mr. Lebeau regretted that the United Kingdom delegation had

withdrawn sub-paragraph (c) and hoped that the idea .it contained

would be introduced in' another article· of the Covenant. That idea,.

strengthened the generally held opinion that war was subject to a

certain number of rules, the infringernent of which should be

rninished.

Mr. CASSIN (France) reminded the Commission that the
'. .

representative of the United Kingdom had withdrawn sub-paragraph (c)

only on the condition that the idea it contained should be

incorporated in another article of the Covenant. The repre~entative

of.Belgium had Just supported that point of view; he had not, however,

dealt with the whole of the problem.
\

quoting Article 42 of the Charter which enabled the Security Council

to use armed force for international police operations, Mr. Cassin pointed

out that those actions would not constitute acts of war properly speaking,

but that they would fàll under the exceptions to the right proclaimed in

article 5. The problem therefore concerned international law, _not war.

1Mr. INGLES



E/cN.4/sR '97
Page 8

l~. INGLES (Philippines) favoured the deletion of sub

parùgraph (c) from the United Kingdom! s draft proposal (E ICN. 4Iv. 21) .

The representative of the United Kingdom had stated, among other things,

that lawful acts of war derived from the provisions of The Rague

International Convention. The Commission, however, could not, either

directly or indirectly, alter the laws of war in illlY way whatsoever.

It vould therefore be advisable to make no :rrention whatever of acts

of war i~ an international covenant on human rights.

Even if that paragraph were deleted, however, the Philippine

delegation could not accept the United Kingdom draft proposal, any

more than it could the French draft j those proposals "lere too restrictive

and at the same time too broad, too restrictive because they did not

include a sufflciently complete list of the diverse situations which

could arise, and too broad because they included certain exceptions

uhich could not real.'.y be considered as such.

Hi. th regard ·to paragraph 2 (b) (ii) of the Uni ted Kingdom draft

proposal, if that sub-paragraph meant more then the concept contained

in the text of sub-paragraph (b) (i), the Philippines delegation vlould

oe opposed ta that provision; life was too precious ta be left at the

mercy of ordinary policerr;.en. It "laS thej:'ofcre suffie:!. eut to provide

for the protection of persons from all unlawful violence.

vii th regard to the other amendments, the Philippine delegation

preferred the draft proposed by the Chilean delegation (E/cN.4/VJ.22)

to the shorter texts proposed by the United States of ~erica and the

USEm, provided a few changes were made in it. In the first place

the Philippine delegation thought that, if the phrase concerning

"politicnl offences Il ,vere omitted, the "lOrds "under ordinary law" would

also have ta be deleted; according ta Philippine law, all crimes and

offences were considered ta come under ordinary Iaw, including, inter~,

the crimes of treascn, sedition, and offences against law and order.

Vœ. Ingles drew the attention of the representative of Chile ta

the fact that the principle that laws were not retroactive, contained

in the third paragraph of the Chilean proposaI, had already been stated

in article 14 of the draft Covenant and that mention of that principle

in article 5 might make it appear that it.only applied in the case of

pèrsons sentenced to death.

IMr. ROOD



, E/CN.4/SR 97
Page 9

Mr. HOOD (A~stralia), '~e~alled that during the' consideration of

article 9, the United Kingdom:delegation had submitted a drait text which

could be ;onsidered satisfactory as it was a comprehensive summary, in

four or five pointsj of a certain number of limitations.

That was not the case with the United Kingdom draft for article 5;
\

indeed, Mr. Hood shared the Philippine representative's view that the

draft was at the seme time too narrow and too broad.

He therefore wished to know whether the United Kingdom delegation

would agree to retain only the first sentence of sub-paragraph (b), of

1ts draft. The sub-paragraph would then contain only the words:

"from the use of force which is no more than absolutely necessary in

case of danger to human life".

Miss BOWIE (United Kingdam) could not accept the Australian

representative's proposal; her delegation had explained on numerous

occasions why the national legislations of States could not be left to

determine the conditions for the implementation of the Beneral provisions

of an international convention.

Mr. ENTEZAM (Iran) à,sked the representative of France whether

he would be prepared to modify paragraph 2, sub-paragraph (b) (lii)

of his draft so asto read "or for prohibiting entry to a clearly defined

place to which access is forbldden on nain of death ori grounds of

general security". He preferred the expression "general security"

to "national securlty"; the former seemed more appropriate for the

reasons given by the representative of France.

Mr. CASSIN (France) accepted the change proposed by the

representative of Iran•.

The CEAIRMAN, speaking as representative of the United States,

said her delegation shared the Philippine delegation's view,that the

third paragraph of the Chilean proposaI was unnecessary as its provisions

were already contained in article 14 of the draft Convention.

~œ. SAGUES (Chile) saw no objection ta the deletion of the

third paragraph of his drait, ae the idea it expreBsed waB already

contained in article 14 of thé drait Convention.

/ As regttrds



· E/CN.4/SR 97
Page 10

As regards the deletion of the expression "ordinary law", however,

he wished to reflect over the matter beforeagreeing, so that he could.

find an alternative expression which would clearly show that non-political

~rimeswere being referred to.

with Chilean law.

He would also like the tex~ to conform
i

/

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as representative of the United States,

stated that, in the circumstances, her deleeation acce~ted the text

proposed by Chile as amended.

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.rn.




